MINUTES

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2022, AT 6:00 P.M.

CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, 2200 Al1A South, St. Augustine Beach, FL 32080

Vi.

VIl

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Samora called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Commission recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor Donald Samora, Vice Mayor Rumrell, and Commissioners Margaret England,
Undine C. George, and Beth Sweeny.

Also present were City Manager Max Royle, City Attorney Charlie Douglas, Police Chief Daniel
Carswell, Police Commander T.G. Harrell, City Clerk Dariana Fitzgerald, Finance Director Patty
Douylliez, Building Official Brian Law, and Public Works Director Bill Tredik.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BUDGET MEETING ON SEPTEMBER 26, 2022,
AND THE REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING ON OCTOBER 3, 2022, AND THE JOINT VISION
PLAN WORKSHOP ON OCTOBER 5, 2022

Motion: To approve the special budget meeting on September 26, 2022, and the regular
Commission meeting on October 3, 2022, and the joint Vision Plan workshop on October 5, 2022.
Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by Commissioner Sweeny. Motion passed unanimousiy.

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS OF THE AGENDA

City Manager Royle advised that there is an addition to the agenda for approval to transfer a high-
water vehicle to the City of St. Augustine Fire Department, which could be added under Consent.
He advised that there are no deletions, but he reminded the Mayor that the Finance Director gave
the Commission a revised Budget Resolution 22-15.

CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF TOPICS ON THE AGENDA

There were none.

PRESENTATIONS

Ms. Janel Finley, Public Affairs Specialist, U.S. Small Business Administration, Regarding Financial
Aid Available to Businesses, Homeowners, Renters, and Non-Profits Affected by Hurricane lan

Ms. Finley introduced herself and showed a PowerPoint [Exhibit A] and played a video from
YouTube [https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1Zu0gRknQZIl]. She advised that she has

1



VL.

additional handout information available for anyone who is interested and that she would also
provide her contact information. The PowerPoint presentation described the three-step process
for Small Business Administration {SBA) disaster assistance, the requirements, etc. She advised
that the business loans are up to $2 million with a 3.04% fixed interest rate for up to thirty-years.
She said that businesses could apply for either a physical damage or an ecanomic impact loan.
She described the types of disaster loans, limits, and terms from the PowerPoint presentation.
She advised that everyone should register with FEMA first befare applying for a loan, that the
physical damage loan deadline is November 28, 2022, and the economic impact loan deadline is
June 29, 2023.

Commissioner George said that it is her understanding that if the work is done before receiving
the FEMA grant money that you could become ineligible for the grant, and she asked for
clarification. Ms. Finley advised that SBA does not do grants, they do loans, and if a FEMA grant
has been received, then you must document how much the grant was for when applying for the
SBA loan.

Commissioner George asked how lang it takes to get 3 FEMA grant. Ms. Finley advised that she
did not have that information. Commissioner George said that she has heard that it could take up
to two years to have to live with the home without being able to have the work done or else they
would forfeit the grant. Ms. Finley advised that there is a FEMA intergovernmental point of
contact that can provide the information regarding FEMA and that she asked Commissioner
George to email her and that she could get that information for her.

Mayor Samora thanked Ms. Finley and said that she provided good information that the City could
pass on for anyone that was affected. Ms. Finley suggested to apply for all three at once to help
keep track of it.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem VIl and advised that the public is invited to speak for three
minutes on non-agenda topics. He advised that any questions would be followed up at the end.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Bill Pelzer, 461 Ocean Grove Circle, 5t. Augustine Beach, FL, said that at the last several
Commission meetings that people had stated their personal concerns for their opposition to
moving the Ocean Hammaock boardwalk, which pale to the security concerns for those who
support the proposal; the most important responsibility for any government is the security of its
citizens; this proposal is designed to address the significant security concerns; security concerns
will be greater after the amenities are completed when it becomes a more active park; it will
become a magnet for the homeless population, which are typically drug/alcohol addicted; the
proposed rerouting would significantly mitigate the security concerns with little to no cost to the
City and he asked for support for the proposal at the December meeting.

lim LeClare, 115 Whispering Oaks Circle, St. Augustine Beach, FL, said that he had previously
showed Zillow listings to point out time-frames when Sea Colony residents moved in near the
boardwalk over the past ten years, along with the five year police report which speaks for itself;
he presented public documents, which should be highlighted for future reference such as the
environmental survey [Exhibit B]; that three people have offered $600,000 to demolish the
existing boardwalk and relocate one through the wetlands area, which is financially driving this
effort; it is important to note that the public benefit has been highly disputed by non-5ea Colony
residents; he showed a slide which depicted three boardwalks and there is no discussion to move
the two Sea Colony boardwalks; this is the only path proposed to the beach which would no longer
be an elevated boardwalk; saw two disabled children on the path using the rail to support them
on their way to the beach; is against considering the Sea Colony proposal and is attaching a letter



IX.

of a Sea Colony rebuttal, which infers the Commissioners agree that the boardwalk should have
been in the center of the park and that this is a chance to rectify that.

Nick Binder, 232 Big Magnolia Court, 5t. Augustine Beach, FL, due to the workload the City took
the position not to do a Request for Qualifications for park planners for Hammock Dunes Park and
he asked the City to keep it an the back burner; traffic signal needed on Madrid/State Road AlA
at Marsh Creek which is an accident waiting to happen; keep in mind that the City spent an extra
$70,000 for construction of the Ocean Hammock Park boardwalk decking, which is in good shape;
siderails need maintenance; agrees with Sea Colony’s safety concerns but a walkway through the
center would be more dangerous and would be at ground level with no railings; the existing
walkway is much safer; there would be homeless people using the park unless the police are going
to patrol it; snakes will come out to the warm concrete.

Mayor Samora closed Public Coamments and asked Chief Carswell for his comments about the
traffic concern comment at Madrid Street. Chief Carswell advised that he is not working on a
traffic signal, but that it is a heavy traffic area which has had crashes there recently. He advised
that he would be happy to contact the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT} to get the
ball rolling. Commissioner Sweeny said that Mr. LeClare looked into having the speed limit
changed in that area and FDOT said that it was not a problem area so they might not approve a
traffic signal there either.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem IX.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Vice Mayor Rumrell thanked staff for getting the City through another storm and said that we did
as good as we could do.

Commissioner George also thanked staff and said that we got major damage to our outer dunes
and hopefully the next renourishment will help recapture some of that. She congratulated the
City Manager for his 33" anniversary with the City.

Mayor Samora and Commissioner Sweeny echoed their thanks to the staff,
Chief Carswell thanked Commander Harrell for coordinating the efforts during the storm,

Mayor Samora moved on to Item X.1 and asked Director Tredik for his presentation.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Resplution 22-15, to Discuss and Adopt a Stormwater Utility Fee {Presenter: Bill Tredik, Public
Works Director)

Director Tredik presented a PowerPoint [Exhibit C] and he advised that this is timely since we
just had a storm, and he is hopeful that the Commission adopts a resolution tonight to show
intent for a stormwater utility fee. He provided background infermation regarding the City's
size, drainage, pumps, ditches, etc. that make up the City's stormwater system. He described
the angoing maintenance of ditch cleaning, inspections, street sweeping, and repairs, at an
estimated cost of $150,000, which would be in the budget every year and would increase
because the City is not doing everything it is supposed to due to lack of funds. He moved on
to the Additional Maintenance Needs portion of the presentation and said that the outfall
canal needs to be maintained to keep it flowing along with the responsibility to maintain the
bulkhead on either side and that lot of things have grown in it during the pond project. He
advised that his estimate for the outfall canal is pretty accurate. He moved on to discuss the
pipe cleaning and future maintenance needs and he advised that these are rough estimates,



and the City could easily be spending over $200,000 a year for maintenance, which does not
include inflation.

Director Tredik moved on to the Project Funding Needs peortion of his presentation and
advised that we had talked before about some of the upcoming projects from the
Vulnerability Study and the Master Drainage Study Update with potentially $10 million in
projects over a ten-year implementation plan. He said that we could potentially get grants
but would still have to come up with $250,000 to match the grants and that we would need
a program to bring the money in for City matches. He advised that the City has been very lucky
to have a few fully funded projects, but it may not in the future. He said that with so much
inflation that projects such as Ocean Walk may cost more than what was approved. He said
that the City needs dedicated funding for stormwater because it is expensive to manage,
could exceed $450,000 per year between projects and maintenance, and that we cannot
always defer things. He advised that the stormwater needs are competing for funds with all
the other wants and needs of the City, such as the for the Police Department, paving,
beautification, etc. He advised that a stormwater utility fee would guarantee that the City has
funds for drainage.

Director Tredik moved on and advised that there is additional information in the agenda
packet regarding the Florida Stormwater Association’s 2022 Stormwater Utility Report and
that 170 other municipalities have stormwater utility fees because it works and that it has
been upheld by Florida Supreme Court. He advised that most of those municipalities used
impervious surface area as the basis to determine their fees. You would determine what the
needs are and then set the fee. It is not dependent on millage, so if property values go down,
you are not in a hole. He said that it guarantees the funding for maintenance, is predictable,
and would allow the Master Plan to work.

Director Tredik advised that even if a housing development has its own stormwater system,
that everyone still drives the City streets and everyone benefits from it. He said that we can
discuss how to make it fair and equitable for the citizens and businesses as it is being
developed and that it can be adjusted annually. He advised that the funding strategy would
be a non-ad valorem assessment because we do not have a monthly utility bill option like
other municipalities may have. He showed a comparison of other similar size cities and their
fees and said that we could start with a low fee to just cover maintenance and bring in projects
later. He explained that the ERU is supposed to be based on the average impervious surface
for a residential unit, which he believed the City's is approximately 3,000 square feet.

Director Tredik advised that we have been through the steps to implement a non-ad valarem
assessment fee and that he is asking to pass a resolution today to express intent to adopt one.
He discussed the upcoming time frames going forward for implementation such as notifying
the tax collector before January 1%, developing a draft to establish the ERU square footage,
etec. by April, to notify all property owners in June, and pass the resolution in August. He
advised that the City could decide to not move forward at any time during that process.

Director Tredik advised that we would need to bring someone onboard to help with this and,
if it is approved tonight, that he would like to put out a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for a
consultant. The consultant could start determining the Equivalent Residential Unit {ERU) and
measure commercial impervious surface areas to develop the stormwater utility fee
ordinance. He advised that it is doable within the time frame but that we cannot wait to get
someone anboard and would need to move forward if we want to go that route.

Director Tredik advised that he estimated that a monthly fee per ERU of $2.70 {$32.40 per
year) would generate an annual estimated revenue of $200,000 just to cover maintenance



and $8.05 per month {$96.60 per year, which is the statewide average) has an estimated
revenue of $575,000, which would allow $375,000 for projects. He advised that $6 per month
per ERU {572 per year per ERU) could fund maintenance plus almost $250,000 of projects
annually. He said that if we do not do this, we could be facing real challenges down the road
and that his requested action is to pass Resolution 22-15 stating intent to assess a non-ad
valorem assessment for stormwater maintenance and improvements. He said that next year
will be challenging and this gives the opportunity to keep the millage down.

Mayor 5amora asked what was in the current budget for stormwater. Director Tredik advised
that is where the $150,000 came from. Mayor Samora asked how much was for projects.
Director Tredik advised that he did not have those numbers but that it was substantially more.
Mayor Samora said that we are still going backwards $50,000 a year in maintenance. Director
Tredik said yes and that we are at the end of our ability to keep everything maintained with
the budget we have.

Commissioner England said that as you prepare the budget you could react to the grants and
after talking to the City Manager today that we do not have any more revenues coming from
the last infrastructure bill. If it is in the millage, you can realistically budget for what you could
accomplish that year and customize it each year. She questioned whether future commissions
would cut it or would they realize the importance of it. She advised that putting it in the
millage and the budget is moare customary to what we could accomplish and the needs for
that year vs. a fee. If this fee is combined with the garbage collection fee, that the residents
are looking at those fees growing each year. Director Tredik advised that it could be budgeted
for each year, but there is no guarantee that the money would be used for stormwater. If this
money is through a non-ad valorem assessment, then it would be spent for stormwater and
would not have to compete with the other needs of the City. He said that 170 other cities
have done this because it gives them the certainty that they can meet the drainage needs. He
said that regardless of the cause, sea level is rising, which is documented by satellite
photography, and we are dealing with it. He advised that the weir was about five inches from
being over the top and that he believes that the City will be facing an improvement to it in
five to ten years because we are battling a changing environment. He said that if it is funded
through the millage that he believes that we would not be doing as much as we should be
doing.

Commissioner England said that staff must be adamant about what is necessary. Director
Tredik advised that we will, but we do not have the final say and this protects the citizens
from flooding. He advised that it is not a random fee but targeted to protect their property
and that he needs some kind of guarantee that he can provide this service. Commissioner
England said that there is no doubt that the money is needed because the storms are getting
more frequent, and the water has to go somewhere.

Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that it would be important to notify the residents of the projects
and what would be maintained so that they understand what the money is going towards. He
said that the yearly maintenance would not be the same every year. Director Tredik advised
that he averaged it over a longer period and that is where he got the $150,000 that is currently
budgeted and that the average is $200,000 per year. Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that we
need to update our project list because at some point we may not be able to get funding from
Tallahassee as frequently as we have been and that he would like to have some mechanism
to go after the funds with matching funds. He advised that for him to be able to support this,
that it would be important to hold the fee steady for a minimum of five to seven years because
we cannot sunset this with an end date. Director Tredik advise that he believes that you could
have a term limit. Vice Mayor Rumrell advise that the trash fee has gone up and that



maintenance would probably go up as well and that he does not want to nickel and dime
every fee and to have a set fee and work within those parameters. He suggested to have a
sunset and revisit it in ten years. Director Tredik advised that since it is a fee that it would
need to have some consideration for inflation to be effective and would be held until the
Commission raises it.

Commissioner Sweeny said that it would need to come back to the Commission each year as
the budget is being determined. Director Tredik said yes and that even a range change would
need to be brought before the Commission each year. He advised that as long as the change
is within the set range that you would not need to republish it each year.

Vice Mayor Rumrell asked if he would have a list of the priorities that he feels are most
important such as the weir, Ocean Walk, etc. Director Tredik said yes.

Mayor Samora asked how far out he could put together a project list. Director Tredik said that
hopefully the Master Stormwater Update will be done this spring and he would have a much
better handle on a project list by then.

Commissioner George asked how broad the scope of use couid be under the purview of
stormwater maintenance/capital improvements. Director Tredik advised that that could be
provided as we move through the process. Commissioner George asked how the project
needs could shift to more resiliency issues as needed. Director Tredik advised that stormwater
and resiliency are closely related, but that certain projects, such as living shorelines, should
not be done through this fee but that a broader ordinance could bring in resiliency.

Discussion ensued regarding other opportunities; sea oats planting is a resiliency project that
fortifies the beach, which could prevent flooding so the connections could be made; could be
a collaborative with other agencies which is beneficial; no reason 1o exclude it.

Commissioner England advised that she has concerns with a fee because we cannot predict
the weather and that there has to be a way to adjust the budget. She said that you cannot get
away from having money for extreme weather circumstances and this would need to be very
well documented. Director Tredik said that if you go down this path that you would set a range
and set a fee and if there is a catastrophic event that there would more than likely be Federal
assistance. He agreed that the Commission would need to look at the budget each year and
decide if additional funds need to come in from ad valorem taxes. He said that if we start with
maintenance only, then you would budget for project money from the General Fund.

Vice Mayor Rumrell asked if the maintenance for stormwater could be taken out of the budget
line item so that the fee would be 100% of the maintenance and the budget funds could be
used elsewhere, Director Tredik said yes, Commissioner George said that is the theory, but
when have we done it with any of the other fees. Director Tredik advise that the stormwater
foreman’s salary would be paid from this fee rather than from ad valorem taxes. He said that
the 550,000 in the budget for various drainage maintenance would be funded from this fee.

Mayor Samora said that the decision is whether we need a protected dedicated fund for
stormwater only.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comments.

Nick Binder, 232 Big Magnolia Court, St. Augustine Beach, FL, stated as a civil engineer he
understands the need from Director Tredik's standpoint, but he is a taxpayer and the
residents have just gone through the multiple increases of solid waste; there may be a number
of $36 or $72 but that is only for the equivalent of one unit, which would need to be multiplied
by 2 or 3, which would be $140-5200 in addition to the 5335 solid waste fee, which equals
$500 a year in non-ad valorem taxes; some people are paying more in non-ad valorem than

6



in ad valorem taxes; people with homestead exemptions would benefit from anything
through the ad valorem taxes not the non-ad valorem; not everyone is in your position and
he is against the fees because they should be in ad valorem.

Karen Kempler, 30 Lee Drive, St. Augustine Beach, FL, agrees that a separate fee is needed for
stormwater because it is the biggest threat; sea level rise is real, and we need to spend money
protecting our homes and businesses and be prepared for more storms; there may be year-
round storms in the future.

Mayor Samora closed Public Comment.

Mayor Samora said that the Commission needs to decide whether to move forward with this
resolution because if it is not approved tonight then we would not be able to do the non-ad
valorem until the next fiscal year. He asked how much a consultant would cost. Director Tredik
advised that it depends on the scope and level of detail that is negotiated but he believes that
it could be in the $25,000 range to start the ball rolling and that some of the work could be
done in-house but that he cannot do it all. We could control the cost to some degree and use
the consultant for the things that we do not have the time to do.

Commissioner Sweeny asked what the basis would be for a legal challenge to this fee. Director
Tredik advised that someone could challenge the ERU, that commercial would pay a lot more,
or if undeveloped land is assessed, etc. and that we would follow models of other challenges
that have won, which the consultant could provide.

Mayor Samora asked the Commission if the City needs a separate fee for stormwater or to
hash it out in the budget every year.

Commissioner Sweeny said that she supports moving this forward because it does rise 1o the
level of importance of a dedicated funding source so that we do not have to go through that
battle each year and that she does not see things improving with flooding and stormwater
management, so now is the time to take action.

Mayor Samora agreed that it is hard for Director Tredik to have a five or ten year plan when
he does not know how much money he will have for stormwater every year.

Commissioner George said that she has been on the fence about this fee, that it needs to be
addressed, but that she is still opposed to a non-ad valorem. She said that the Master Plan is
not updated, and we just implemented a couple of other fees and that it is a timing issue.

Mayor Samora said that we have to be aware that it would either come from a millage
increase or a non-ad valorem fee. Commissioner George said that we have faced a lot of
unique circumstances over the last couple of years and unfortunately it has not allowed us to
give money back to the residents by reducing the millage and for now she would prefer to
handle it in the millage.

Commissioner England advised that she is torn because she believes that we are going to need
both and that the City of 5t. Augustine probably has money in their budget and a stormwater
utility fee. She said that she would support having a stormwater utility fee.

Motion: To approve Resolution 22-15 and approve advertising an RFQ for a consultant.
Moved by Mayor Samora, Seconded by Commissioner Sweeny.

Mayor Samora asked for a roll call vote.
Commissioner George No

Vice Mayor Rumrell Yes



Commissioner England Yes
Commissioner Sweeny Yes
Mayor Samora Yes
Motion passed 4-1.

Mavyor Samera asked when the Commission would see this again. Director Tredik advised that
he would put the RFQ out right away and when he has the rankings that he would bring it
back to the Commission. He advised that he would submit the resolution to the property
appraiser and that the Commission may not see it again until spring after the information is
gathered to present the ranges or it could be brought back midway through the process.

Mayor Samora said that the Commission has been provided a lot of good material. He
requested that the Commission be provided with updated information as it comes in so that
research could be done, and questions could be answered. Director Tredik advised that he
could do an update before any decisions need to be made in April.

Mayor Samora moved on to [tem X.2 and asked Director Tredik for his report.

Resolution 22-16, to Discuss and Adopt a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for Solid Waste
Collected from Vacation Rentals {Presenter: Bill Tredik, Public Works Director)

Director Tredik advised that he did not have a presentation, 50 he recapped by reading from
the background information provided in the agenda packet. He advised that the elimination
of the can count method provided some savings, but that it did not really pan out for the
transient rentals. In October of 2022, the Commission voted to begin the process of a
commercial solid waste non-ad valorem assessment to help deal with the issues from
transient rentals. He advised that the same timeline exists for this, and a resolution needs to
be passed today to make this happen for the next fiscal year so that we can notify the Tax
Collector by lanuary 1, 2023. He advised that this is less controversial than the others because
it is not a new fee, it is just a transfer of how we are collecting the fee. He said that the action
requested tonight is to pass Resolution 22-16.

Mayor Samora asked if the fee has to be the same as the residential non-ad valorem
assessment. Director Tredik said no, and he advised that the Commission has the option of
setting that fee. He said that transient rentals are similar home properties, and he does not
believe that it should be less than the residential fee but that it would be the Commission's
decision.

Motion: To approve Resolution 22-16. Moved by Commissioner George, Seconded by Vice
Mayor Rumrell. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item X.3 and asked Director Tredik for his report.

Resolution 22-17, to Discuss and Adopt a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for the Connecting of
Private Buildings to Underground Power Lines (Presenter: Bill Tredik, Public Works Director)

Director Tredik advised that everyone is familiar with the 2™ Street project. He said that he
would recap the background information from the agenda packet and then go over what
needs to happen moving forward and what needs to be decided. He said that the project is
now under construction and the sanitary lines and storm drains are in and it is moving along.

Director Tredik advised that the Commission authorized Florida Power and Light (FPL) to begin
the design, which has largely been completed at this time [preliminary design from agenda
book shown on overhead projector]. He said that it is fed from the east and the west, so we



do not need every house to provide an easement but that there are three property owners
that have not granted easements, which is based largely on the uncertainty of the cost.

Mayor Samaora said that the western half of 2" Street is undergrounded, and he asked if it
had any dependency on the eastern half. Director Tredik advised that there is some
dependency but that it could be done without the eastern half. He said that FPL anticipated
the eastern half going in 50 they would need to make a slight change to it. He said that we
have everything on the western half to make it happen. He said that we still do not have a
final plan from FPL, and we are in a time crunch to get conduit under the road or at least the
crossing of the road.

Director Tredik advised that he is concerned about the eastern block and that we are in a bit
of a predicament because of the cost. He said that none of the easements have been recorded
yet and would not be recorded until we get all the ones needed. He advised that we are not
there yet and that he does not believe that we will get there unless we can figure out the
funding. He said that at the last meeting we talked about four different options, which he
recapped from the information provided in the agenda packet and that the Commission
agreed to move forward with Option #2 to advertise for a Public Hearing to consider the intent
to implement a non-ad valorem assessment. He advised that this resolution would need to go
through the same process with the Tax Collector, etc. He advised that we do not have solid
numbers, all we have are preliminary estimates. He said that he thought it would cost
$34,000-552,000 for FPL plus the cost to underground other utilities. He said that there are
other potential options, such as a special assessment, but it has challenges. He advised that
the recommended action by staff is to pass Resolution 22-17 tonight. He advised that there
are residents here tonight to speak about this and that he received an email of oppaosition
that he forwarded to the City Clerk. He said that the feeling is that there have been two
hurricanes and there was no need for line repair.

Mayor Samora asked if the utilities on the poles have been identified. Director Tredik said that
he believed that there are two other utilities on the poles, which are probably Comcast and
ATR&T, but that he would need to verify that. Mayor Samora asked if the cost to underground
those other utilities is bundled into this cost estimate. Director Tredik said no. He advised that
he does not have firm numbers on that yet and he would have to see how they are fed but
that they should not be as costly as FPL.

Commissioner Sweeny asked if the assessment range would be the $34,000-$52,000 or is this
just the assessment for the connection fee, or the total cost for the assessment for this section
of the street. Director Tredik advised that it is not the total cost, it is the assessment range
potential, which is not being decided tonight. He said that those figures were provided to give
an idea of the type of assessment and the overall value that it could be. He said that he would
have better information by spring when the Commission would need to make the decision.
He said that those figures are not necessarily divided between everyone because the first two
properties are commercial, which would still be served from above, so they would not be
assessed. lis divided between approximately ten lots and could be as much as $5,000 per lot.

Vice Mayor Rumrell said that the $5,000 is in addition to the $750 FPL tariff per meter.
Director Tredik said yes, and that the tariff is challenging because it would not be the same
for each property such as the two properties on the west end that are already underground,
which would have a smaller tariff. He advised that all those details could be worked out, but
the question is, do we want to have this path as an option.

Commissioner George asked if this resolution would obligate the City to any approach as far
as dividing that cost between the property owners, whether it be a fraction or a case-by-case



decision based upon the circumstances of each property. Director Tredik advised that he
would need to confer with the City Attorney as we develop the ordinance.

Mayor Samora asked if different properties could be assessed different non-ad valorem fees.
Finance Director Douylliez advised that it would be very challenging. She said that we would
need to set a flat fee and then she would need to have some type of divisible number.

City Clerk Fitzgerald advised that this resolution does not obligate the City to any particular
path 50 you can vote yes tonight and still change the path later. Director Tredik advised that
he would continue to investigate other options, but he is trying to keep this option open for
undergrounding otherwise it will not be part of this project.

Commissioner England advised that this Commission and previous Commissions have all said
they want to underground utilities and it is in the Vision Plan. She would like to keep going
and find a uniform way of approaching this. She believes that a special assessment is one of
the best ways to do it, which could be paid by the owner over a specified number of years and
if the property is sold, then it is paid from the proceeds and the City gets its money back. it is
the best way to accomplish it in a uniform manner for the underground utilities that are a
benefit to some of our more recent neighborhoods and the resiliency for the rest of the City.
She advised not to back down or be fearful of going down this uniform path when there is an
opportunity to underground utilities. She said that the City has a lot of trees and we do not
want to cut a lot of trees down after storms and give up our hammaock cover.

Mayor Samora asked Commissioner England to clarify whether she meant a special
assessment or a non-ad valorem. Commissioner England advised that a special assessment is
like a loan and putting a lien on a property, but there is a benefit to each individual property.

Commissioner George said that it raises questions about the applicability of a special
assessment vs. a non-ad valorem, which is what we have before us. She asked staff if an
analysis was done, is a special assessment not an option, etc. Commissioner England said that
a special assessment would show up on a title search as a lien on the property and she was
not sure if a non-ad valorem would show up unless it is not paid and then it becomes a lien.

Discussion ensued regarding that a special assessment shows if there is a transfer of the
property and the special assessment would get paid; that a non-ad valorem would not be
satisfied at closing and the new owner would continue the payments,

Finance Director Douylliez advised that she had a brief discussion with someone from St.
Johns County who is knowledgeable about special assessments, and he went through their
process. She said that they basically wait for a neighborhood to ask for the improvement,
which must have at least fifty percent on a petition to move forward and then the County
would begin to analyze the benefits, the costs, etc. That analysis then goes back to the
community to decide if they still want the improvement, which needs seventy percent
approval before the County would move forward. The assessment would be based on the
improvement to each individual lot with larger lots possibly having a greater benefit. She
advised that the City would have to come up with a benefit analysis similar to what the non-
ad valorem is so that we could divide the cost and set a time frame,

Commissioner George said it sounds like we already have a system in place to proceed with a
non-ad valorem and not for a special assessment. Finance Director Douylliez said ves.
Commissioner George said that it sounds like there is not any other material benefit or impact
other than the possibility of getting paid at closing, which neutralizes the question.

Finance Director Douylliez has concerns for the time frame of a non-ad valorem and its impact
and/or delay on the project. Director Tredik advised that he cannot delay the project, but it

10



may end up costing a little more if we put the conduit in after the road is complete. Or we
could do the change order knowing that we are going to pass this assessment down the road,
get the conduit placed, and activate it as soon as passible. He asked for clarification whether
a special assessment is a lien. Finance Director Douylliez advised that it is similar to a non-ad
valorem on the taxes.

Commissioner Sweeny said that if we levy this assessment the residents could still deny the
easement and then the City could not move forward with the project. Director Tredik agreed.
Commissioner England said that the City would have the legal remedy to obtain that
easement. Director Tredik said yes there is a legal remedy but then you are starting to pay for
those easements and not get them dedicated. Commissioner England suggested to stand
strong on this policy.

Commissioner George said we have the easements from the other property owners and could
put the conduit in the road and wait until we voluntarily get the other easements.
Commissioner Sweeny said that she has received emails from four owners so far and if we are
only talking about ten lots, then that is almost half of them and she is struggling with moving
forward. Commissioner George said that she has heard that there is a fairness issue and
whether the mechanism would neutralize some of the concerns.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comments.

Jay Floyd, 111-A 2" Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, stated that in twenty years he has never
had an FPL truck on his street; has lost power but it was somewhere else on the grid; there
are several healthy large live oak trees, which are maintained by the owners; it is not in the
Comprehensive Plan to underground the entire City; last year when the City decided to open
up the end of 2™ Street the undergrounding was offered and it was his understanding that it
would not cost the homeowners; there is no plan for the other utilities, so the poles would
still remain; he is taking back his easement because he does not know how much it is going
to cost; there was other recent paving done and there was no talk of undergrounding those
utilities; if it were part of the Comp Plan, he would be ok with it.

Chris Barkett, 114 2"¢ Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, is taken aback by where we are with this
issue; in 2015 you decided to come in 1% Street and we were told it was a done deal; the
Commission did not listen to the residents that did not want 2™ Street opened; the only
reason he believes that it was brought back up was because a developer offered to pay for a
fraction of the road to be cut through; we live there and are dealing with it and the pump that
runs 24/7 smelling of diesel fumes; he and his wife are public educators; all he has heard
tonight is that we are paying more for other things and inflation is going up but his salary is
not; the money could be earmarked for something else that is more important to the
residents; has never had a power line down in twenty years; we teach our kids not to make
decisions before you have all the facts yet we are not getting all the facts to make this
decision; there are several homeowners on 2™ Street that have no idea what is going on with
their easements or the FPL Tariff, etc.; undergrounding is great but the cost has to be right;
the City did not ask us, it is telling us, because you want to do it, not because it is what we
want; the residents need to have a say in this.

Marc Craddock, 116 2™ Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, is torn about this issue because he
wants undergrounding to happen; it was the “olive branch” that was offered by this
Commission in order to open 27 Street, that as a concession the City would underground and
pave the street, but the cost was not disclosed to the residents; he is willing to pay for
undergrounding because it is important to him but he is an outlier from the residents that
showed up tonight; suggested doing a cost-share with the residents to divide the cost to

11



encourage it and spread the cost over as long a period as possible; if the entire cost is going
to fall upen the residents then he is starting to lean with the other residents because he feels
a little bit duped because something was offered and then it was pulled back; he is for the
undergrounding and is willing to pay for it, but not at the cost of his neighbaors.

Jim LeClare, 115 Whispering Oaks Circle, St. Augustine Beach, FL, is for the undergrounding of
utilities; Whispering Oaks already has underground utilities, and he believes this benefits the
entire community; ask the citizens to vote to share the cost to help get it started and it could
possibly keep going.

Mayer Samora closed Public Comments.

Commissioner George advised that the City is sharing the cost. In fact, the City is paying the
entire cost except the individual connection cost, which is what is being discussed tonight.
She said that you have to put that in context. Also, there is a procedure that the City has to
go through just to keep the option open, which is the stage we are at now, to consider
whether to keep the option open. It is a lengthy process to get to the point of being committed
and that is why we do not have all the answers at this point. She said that the City is not trying
to force this upon anyone without information, but it is the nature of the process
unfortunately. We do not have all the costs for the other utilities, etc. and all those other
things take a lot of time to gather so there is no purpose for them to outline it until we get all
the information. She said that she would be uninterested in proceeding if the poles would be
left behind for other utilities because it should never happen. She appreciates the financial
hardship concerns as well.

Commissicner Sweeny advised that she is sensitive to putting this fee on the owners who are
telling us that they do not want it and that undergrounding is not as impartant to them. She
said that she is struggling to move forward with this since there are nearly half of the residents
that do not want it and do not want to pay for it. She said that the argument that this one
street is being singled out resonates with her and until we have a Comprehensive Plan for
undergrounding utilities, funding for it, and a plan in place, that she has a hard time singling
out a street whose residents say that they do not want it. She said that she cannot support
this today.

Commissicner George advised that it is just because it would be substantially less expensive
to do it on 2" Street because of the extensive work that is already being done. Director Tredik
advised that he did not believe that it would be substantially less but definitely less.

Commissicner England advised that the City does have a plan to underground utilities along
AlA Beach Boulevard which is a start. She said that there may be other streets that come up
before the Commissicn can actually talk about a Comprehensive Plan for the entire City, which
she believed eventually would be undergrounded. She said that there are newer
neighborhoods which are underground and are benefitting from that.

Commissioner George said that the decision to turn the road or not was about fifty-fifty and
that there was no majority preference for one option. She advised that the decision was based
on expert recommendations. She understands that it would leave half of the street unhappy.
She said that she uses the 2™ Avenue bike path all the time and has seen that horrible pump
but hopefully it would be done scon.

Mayor Samora said that there is an appetite for cost sharing on this even from residents that
do not live there. He asked the City Attorney what precedent it would set if the City absorbed
the cost of the connections. City Attorney Douglas advised that it would open the City up for
an argument later down the line when there is a Comprehensive Plan in place and everyone
wants a cost share for their connection fees.

12



X1

Commissioner George said what if this was the so called “guinea pig” street and it could be
written that it was done to see how it goes, therefore setting it apart from a larger
Comprehensive Plan. City Attorney Douglas advised that he would prefer to see a rational
basis for singling out 2™ Street for the cost share basis due to the existing construction in the
area and strategy in terms of time for the cost savings. He advised that a future Commission
could depart from that precedent of cost sharing.

Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that he is leaning with Commissioner Sweeny and that if the City
did a survey and people knew how much it was to connect, that they may not be eager to
connect. After the testimony from the residents today, he could not support moving forward
either.

Commissioner George said for the record that it is $2,750 to $7,750, and even spread over
ten years, it could be a lot for peaple.

Mayor S5amara advised that that is not the decision before us tonight and that everyone wants
us to move farward but how do we do it without burdening the residents. Vice Mayor Rumrell
said that it is a slippery slope because Agenda item 12 is undergrounding utilities on 4™ Street
between 2" Avenue and the Boulevard. Commissioner George advised that it is also opening
up the street, which is the same as we did on 8" Street, the west side of 2™ Street, and 12™
Street. Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that there is a business on the corner. Commissioner
George said that is just opening up the road and it is silly not to put the utilities underground,
which is how we got here now.

Motion: To approve Resolution 22-17. Moved by Commissioner George, Seconded by
Commissioner England.

Commissioner George advised that if this does pass, that it is critical to her for staff to get the
resolution on the question of the other utilities and the poles for the next go around so that
we know whether to proceed further and how to handle the cost. Director Tredik advised that
the intent is to get them off the poles and not to leave the poles. Commissioner George
advised that getting those figures would give resolution to a substantial issue.

Commissioner Sweeny asked if the homeowners would also have additional costs for the
other utilities to reconnect. Director Tredik advised that there may be some additional cost
but not to the level of FPL. Commissioner George advised that that is what we will want to
know. Director Tredik said that he will find out the costs.

Mayor Samora asked for a roll call vote.

Vice Mayor Rumrell No
Commissioner England Yes
Commissioner Sweeny No
Mayor Samora No
Commissioner George Yes

Motion fails 3-2.

Mayor Samora moved on to [tem X1

CONSENT

(Note: Consent items can be approved by one motion and vote unless a Commissioner wants to
remove an item for discussion and a separate vote)

13



4,

5.

Resolution 22-14, to Amend Section X11.4 of the Personnel Manual to Require All Non-Salaried
Employees to Use Time Sheets for the Recording of Work Hours

Budget Resolutions:

A. 22-15, to Adjust Funding from the American Rescue Plan Act
B. 22-16 and 22-17, for Adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget

5A. To Approve the Transfer of a High-Water Vehicle to the City of St. Augustine Fire Department

Motion: To approve the Consent Agenda. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by
Commissicner Sweeny. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samara moved on to [tem XI1.6 and asked Director Tredik for his report.

Xil.  OLD BUSINESS

6.

Ocean Walk Subdivision Drainage Improvements: Update Report (Presenter: Bill Tredik, Public
Waorks Director)

Scott Knowles, Matthews Design Group, 7 Water Street, showed designs from a PDF [Exhibit
D]. He advised that they are currently permitting with St. Johns River Water Management
District (SIRWMD), and he is expecting comments and the permit in the next few days. He
said that they are at the point where they need to talk with the residents that are impacted
as highlighted in yellow on Exhibit D-1. The reason for the impact is because they have to
recreate the swales and install some pipes and each one of these residents will feel an impact
of some sort. The biggest impact will be to the driveways, but there are four lots that will be
more heavily impacted with new pipes going in between lots 14 and 15 and 28 and 30 Lee
Drive and we will need to get the easements from them. He advised that lot 15 has some
floeding issues as well and there is an opportunity when we bring the pipe through to relieve
some of that flooding by simply adding another inlet on the pipe. He said that between lots 6
and 7 has a pipe going through it and he is not sure if they have a clear easement so it would
need to be cleared up because part of the project requires them to replace that pipe with a
larger one. He said that he is trying to avoid standing water in the driveways as shown on
Exhibit D-4 and to use pass-through trench drains as shown on Exhibit D-5, which is basically
a pipe with a trench drain over top. He said that a lot of the homes have driveways that slope
towards the garage, and this will help fix some of those flooding issues. They are fairly easy
to maintain, and work well with paver driveways. 'He advised that the lift station is being
permitted right now with SIRWMD and that it would be fenced in as shown on Exhibit D-8
and will not be seen or cause a visibility issue with traffic.

Commissioner George asked how tall the fence would be. Mr. Knowles said that it would be
six feet tall. Commissioner George asked if there would be any landscaping around it. Mr.
Knowles said no. He would suggest doing some landscaping, but to keep in mind that it is
close to a roadway intersection and landscaping would need to be low to not cause any traffic
visibility issues or interfere with powerlines. Commissioner George suggested using bushes.
Mr. Knowles said that bushes would help mask it a little bit.

Mayor Samora asked if the pumps were quiet. Mr. Knowles advised that the pump would be
fairly quiet, it is an electric motor and that he believed that the closest resident probably
would not hear it. He said that you would hear it if you were standing next to it.

Mayor Samora asked how the resident input would be done. Mr. Knowles advised that he
would suggest a workshop meeting because most residents would probably have questions.
He said that the pros of the project cutweigh the cons.

14



Commissioner George asked who is funding the driveway improvements. Mr. Knowles
advised that it is part of the grant and those driveway improvements are needed to get the
water out. Commissioner George asked if it would be a trench underneath a grate. Mr.
Knowles advised that it is an open pipe under the grate that would carry the water from one
side of the driveway to the other. Commissioner George asked if there would be
enhancements to the swales. Mr. Knowles said yes because if we put pipes in then we have
to make the swales much deeper and would try to keep the impact to any trees low.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comments.

Karen Kempler, 30 Lee Drive, St. Augustine Beach, FL, is glad that it is moving forward;
appreciates the efforts of the City and Vice Mayor Rumrell to bring in two pumps during the
recent storms; believes that a workshop would be very helpful.

Mayor Samora thanked Mr. Knowles for his update. He moved on to Item XI1.7 and asked
Director Tredik for his report.

LED Streetlight Conversion: Approval of Phase 3 Contract with Florida Power and Light
(Presenter: Bill Tredik, Public Works Director)

Director Tredik read the background information as provided in the agenda packet and
advised that Phase 3 would convert the remaining 124 fixtures with a 42-watt LED fixture. He
showed a map with the phases as provided on Page 2 of the agenda packet and said that there
will be two new lights at the entrance to the Ridge, which has some dark areas, and will make
it much safer for pedestrians.

Director Tredik said that turtle lights have come up in the past and at the time they did not
have a good shield solution, so we are looking at amber lights for the twenty-five locations
that we turn off the lights each year during turtle season. He advised that the amber lights
could stay on during turtle season and have a little larger footprint of ground illumination, but
they cost more and are actually a higher wattage, so they use more electricity. He advised
that FPL now offers a shroud for the new 42-watt fixture such as those in Flagler Beach. The
shroud comes down about three inches or it could be customized in some cases, it would not
be able to be seen from the beach and should not be a disorienting factor to the sea turtles.
He said that the 42-watt LED fixture would also actually reduce the City’s cost by a few
thousand dollars over the year. He said that he did not see any reason to go with the amber
when the shroud appears to protect the turtles and would give a uniform consistent look
throughout the City. He advised that his calculation took into consideration four feet below
mean sea level as the turtle’s view to ensure that the lights were not in their line of sight, and
he is comfortable with it. His recommendation is to go with the 42-watt LED fixture for all of
them and shroud the ones that are needed. He said that if any of the shrouded lights ever
become visible from the beach that they could be turned off or converted to amber.

Director Tredik advised that the two new lights going in at 11 Street/Ridgeway Road do not
have poles right now or underground wires and there is a one-time fee of just under 51,300
to initiate the installation and a $47.63 monthly fee, which includes an $18.39 additional
charge for the underground wires. He said that the action requested is to authorize the City
Manager to execute two LED Lighting Agreements with FPL.

Commissioner Sweeny asked if the two new lights on 11" Street would be on the north or
south side. Director Tredik advised that they would be on the north side and may need to be
shrouded if they are an issue for the homeowners.

Mayor Samora asked if Director Tredik spoke to St. Johns County Beach Services regarding
amber vs. shrouded lighting. Director Tredik advised that he sent them an email notifying

15



them that he would be talking about it at this meeting, and he did not get a response. Mayor
Samora said that he wished we had something from them because they can be very particular
about the lighting. Director Tredik advised that they are used at Flagler Beach, and they work,
but that he understands the concern and that is why he invited them to this meeting.

Commissioner George asked if they have been used anywhere else in St. Johns County yet.
Director Tredik said not to his knowledge.

Commissioner Sweeny asked how quickly this would move forward if approved. Director
Tredik advised that the agreements would be initiated right away with FPL and that it would
probably be at least a few months before they actually start. He said that last time it took
about three or four months before we saw anything happening and that the goal would be to
get them changed out before May 1% when turtle season happens again. Commissioner
Sweeny asked if the City would have time if there were an issue.

Mayor Samora suggested to have St. Johns County Beach Services sign off on the design
before moving forward. Director Tredik said that he could work those details out and not sign
the agreement uniess the County signs off on it. Mayor Samora said that he would feel much
more comfortable with that. Director Tredik said that it would not need to come back as long
as they signed off on it.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment.

Commissioner-Elect Virginia Morgan, 208 Bluebird Lane, St. Augustine Beach, FL, is pleased
to hear about the 11™" Street lights; uses that stretch of road a lot and it is very dark.

Mayor Samora closed Public Comment.

Motion: To authorize the City Manager to execute an LED lighting agreement with FPL, and
with 5t. Johns County Beach Services’ permission, for conversion of the 124 70-watt HPS lights
to 42-watt 3,000 K LED fixtures, twenty-five of the 124 converted streetlights will be shrouded
for turtle protection, and the addition of two 53-watt 3,000 K LED streetlights along 11"
Street, east of Mickler Boulevard. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by Commissioner
Sweeny. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XI1.8 and asked Building Official Law for his report.

Code Enforcement: Continuation of Discussion of Request to Hire Second Code Enfarcement
Officer (Presenter: Brian Law, Building Official)

Building Official Law advised that additional information has been provided at the
Commission’s request and that some of it was performed by the City Manager's staff with
typical rates based on some of the rental companies. He said that this is going to be a two-
pronged approach by first asking the Commission to decide if there is a need to hire a second
Code Enforcement Officer, and if so, then we could move into the funding mechanism. He
said that the Commission had a month to think about it and has seen the additional
information. He said that his stance is still very clear that the City needs a second Code
Enforcement Officer. He advised that the Code Enforcement Board heard this at their last
meeting and that he has included those minutes and a summary of their recommendation of
yes at $450 for transient rental inspections.

Mayor Samora said that it was good information that was brought back and that he
appreciated the good discussion from the Code Enforcement Board. He advised that he did
not believe that there was ever any issue by the Commission of the need for it.

Vice Mayor Rumrell said that the information provided was great. He said that if there are
251 transient rental inspections for fiscal year 2022, that if you did one a day and divided that

16



by five workdays per week, that it wouid take 50.8 weeks just to do the transient rental
inspections, which does not include other duties such as tree inspections, etc. The information
provided specified about two hours per inspection, which is a quarter of a workday. He said
that he completely supports it.

Commissioner Gearge said that all the factors add up, but she is still on the fence of full-time
vs, part-time. She is hearing loud and clear that it needs to be full-time.

Commissioner England said that she supports it. She has read the minutes and reports about
how long it takes to bring a code violation to fruition. She asked how often a homeowner will
claim they never received a code violation notice. Building Official Law said that it happens
mare than not, which is why we exercise our ability to hand-deliver, leave door knockers, send
certified mail, etc. Commissioner England recommended that if there is no response within a
certain time frame after the second notice, to pass the fee on to the homeowner. Building
Official Law said that traditionally that is what they do and once it goes to the Code
Enforcement Board that is to try to get compliance and allows about a month to fix the case.
He advised that once it is advertised then that person is summoned to the Board whether
they come into compliance or not because the City has spent additicnal revenue for staff time
and the cost of the legal advertising. If compliance was not achieved, then the Board would
decide on what fine to levy per day.

Commissioner England said that it is not just about the inspections and that this could allow
for the code violations to be moved to a resolution much quicker and having an extra Code
Enforcement Officer would help and she supports it.

Mayor Samora said that we have support for the position and now we need to pay for it. He
said that the proposal is to raise the transient rental inspection fee to $450 per unit from
$125, which was a recommendation from the Code Enforcement Board. He asked if there
were any other options. Building Official Law advised that this option was one that he had
control over, or that the Commission could raise the fee to whatever they want and the
Finance Director would need to pull money from the reserve. He said to keep in mind that
this option is to be able to self-fund it.

Mayor Samora asked when the new fee would go into effect. Building Official Law
recommended that it should not go into effect until at least January of next year to allow for
finishing up with the straggler transient rental inspections. He advised that he would like to
see a thirty-day moratorium for any appeals.

Commissioner Sweeny asked how many code violation complaints are received for transient
rentals. Building Official Law advised that he receives a substantial amount complaining about
illegal transient rentals, which are hard to investigate and take a long time. Commissioner
George asked about the licensed rentals. Building Official Law advised that they are mostly
handled by the Police Department because Code Enforcement does not operate at night, and
they would provide a report the next business day. He reminded the Commission that the City
Manager has the authority to remove a Business Tax Receipt {(BTR).

Mayor Samora asked if the revenue generated from the increased fee would be seen this
fiscal year. Building Official Law said yes because the majority of the inspections begin August
1%. City Clerk Fitzgerald advised that the first annual notice goes out August 1° because BTRs
expire on September 30" each year and the 2" notice with a 10% late fee just went out at
the beginning of November. Building Official Law advised that he has actually put up his
inspections a month ahead of time because there are so many inspections and the two or
more hours it takes for each. Commissioner George advised that she has never scheduled her
property’s inspection unless it is vacant.

17



Mayor Samora opened Public Comment. Being none, he closed Public Comment,

Commissioner George advised that we just calculated that it is about a quarter of the time to
do the inspections with one full-time employee. She said that she was approached by a
neighbor who thanked her for advocating against quadruplicating the fee. She is definitely
opposed to increasing the fee across the board without consideration for the size or the value
of the rentals. She said that it is not that it is too much all at once, but that the employee is
only going to spend about a quarter of their time on that specific task. She said that calculating
from the 25% rule, factoring in additional for a vehicle and other costs, even if it was paying
half of it, but to pay almost double the salary and benefits cost just to be an additional revenue
source is disproportionate considering that some of the rentals are only getting $70-580 a
night. She said that if we want to stick with a flat fee that she would suggest that the increase
should not be more than double the existing fee, which is about half of what is proposed or
to create a tiered system based upon the number of bedrooms, which might end up
generating a lot more revenue and would not be that difficult. Building Official Law advised
that the City of St. Augustine implements it, it is not difficult, it would be on the Property
Appraiser, and would just mean getting creative with a computer program. He said that there
would be complaints, and people may lie about the number of bedrooms, and that is
something that we would not be investigating or try to find the listing, etc. Commissioner
George advised that there are so many other things in our Code such as the number of
bedrooms, which ties in with how many people are allowed to sleep there plus the Officer
could count the number of bedrooms during the inspection. Building Official Law advised that
it would basically become the honor system and he could create the computer program for it
but there is no definition of a bedroom in the Florida Building Code. He said that there is an
unwritten rule that a bedroom had to have a closet, but he would challenge anyone to find
that rule.

Commissioner England advised that the registration is a tiered rate, so why not have the
registration and the inspection fee be the same. Building Official Law advised that the initial
registration fee is approximately $96.25 and once you are established within the City then
you only pay the annual inspection fee and then the BTR fee. He advised that we do a flat
registration fee because the more tiers, the more chances of human error.

Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that he liked the recommendation from the Code Enforcement
Board. He said that every rental he saw showed an average of $178 a night. Commissioner
George asked where that data came from. Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that it was from
Endless Summer Vacation Rentals. Commissioner Sweeny advised that she just did a search
of her Airbnb app and the cheapest rental for a week in January in $t. Augustine Beach would
be $90 for one person staying. Commissioner George advised that January is also snowbird
month, that she actually manages her own unit and has talked to other people and is speaking
from that experience.

Commissioner England said that we have spent a lot of time redoing the trash collection fees
and we do not subsidize trash collection. She said that the short-term rental is a special
program that should not be subsidized by the General Fund and should be funded through
fees. She said that she still likes the tiered registration fee, and the inspection fee should
match the registration.

Commissioner Sweeny said that she is alright with a flat fee, and she agreed that the program
should fund itself. Mayor Samora agreed with that as well. Commissioner Sweeny said that is
why she asked the question about the number of complaints because this stretches beyond
just inspections and that the fee should help cover the cost of investigating those complaints.
She advised that she agrees with the proposal as is.

18



Mayor Samora asked if this would need to be brought back to the Commission. Building
Official Law advised no, only a resolution for the fee schedule and that the budget would
potentially need to be amended.

Mayor Samora said that he has heard a consensus that the Commission wants this to fund the
cost of the program. Commissioner George asked for clarification of what is meant by
“program”. She asked if it was for the salary for the new Code Enforcement Officer because
he did not indicate that there was a lot of Code Enforcement work on licensed transient
rentals. Building Official Law advised that most of those would be Police calls, and if they feel
that it was resolved, then Code Enforcement does not launch a Code Enforcement case. He
said for the most part he believed that the City has responsible transient rental owners. He
said that there are other expenses as well such as vehicles, computers, etc.

Mayor Samaora asked if the City is going to have two Code Enforcement Officers, what
percentage of a two-person Code Enforcement Department would be allocated to these
transient rental inspections. Building Official Law advised that regular inspections would be
split up because having one person do one specific job does not support his ultimate mission
of well-rounded training. He said that Mr. Timmons is the most popular person in the City
right now and that half of the people that have walked into the office for the past three
months want to see him, but he is almost never there because he is out doing inspections. He
said that sometimes transient rental inspections go really well and other times they do not.

Commissioner England said that if you look at the additional cost of another Code
Enforcement Officer at $70,000, plus administrative fees of licensing and renewals, plus gas,
it would be close to $100,000 for the program for a year. So, if we need to fund a $100,000,
then just come up with the appropriate fee.

Commissioner George asked if this was factoring in the BTRs. Building Official Law advised
that BTR fees can only be increased every so many years by a certain increment. City Clerk
Fitzgerald advised that the annual fee for transient rentals is $30.19, which can only be raised
by 5% every two years. She said that the BTR fee and the inspection fee both go into the
General Fund, so it is going to the same program, but we do not have the mechanism to raise
the BTR fee the same way as the inspection fee. She said that the BTR fee has to follow State
Statute. Commissioner George said that her point was how much money on it is already being
generated by the BTRs. City Clerk Fitzgerald advised that she believed that the BTRs for every
business, not just transient rentals, generated around $28,000 a year.

Mayor Samora advised that it sounds like we are on the path to try to cover the additional
cost from fees that we are going to generate.

Commissioner Sweeny advised that she is comfortable with it because it is also in line with
surrounding jurisdictions. Commissioner George advised that downtown has the tiered
system and that she would be an advocate for $125 for a one-bedroom, $250 for a two-
bedroom, $375 for a three-bedroom, etc. Mayor Samora pointed out that downtown'’s tiered
system starts out at $295.

Commissioner George said that she gets that it is a business, but it is unprecedented to
quadruple a fee and that she would stand up for the people and suggest that we not do that
radical of an increase in one year.

Mayor Samora said that it sounds like we need to raise our base fee and double it to $250,
and that the spread is not that much if you add another $50 per bedroom. That complexity of
it is worth the trouble to save $50-$100. Commissioner George asked if the Mayor would
support an increase to $250. Mayor Samora said that he did not believe that it would cover
the cost of the program. Commissioner George said that it would be close to the salary and

19



the 5450 would generate $120,000. Mayor Samora advised that the Code Enforcement Board
went through it and said that $400 would fall short. Commissioner George said that Page C of
the agenda item cover memo showed that a $500 fee would bring in $118,500 per year and
so half of that would bring in nearly $60,000 per year. Building Official Law advised that those
numbers would have come from the chart, which shows different fees and to keep in mind
that you would need to subtract the $125 that the City is already generating from the
program. Commissioner George asked why the $125 base would not be included. Building
Official Law advised because you are already partially paying for one Code Enforcement
Officer so you cannot include it and would have to look at the difference to fund the new
position. Commissioner George said that you do not need one and a quarter of an Officer to
handle this, it is only ane officer. Building Official Law said that you are trying to come up with
a linear number and there isn’t one because Code Enforcement is all over the board and it is
at the will of the people. He said there is no number that he could provide to say that a Code
Enforcement Officer spends twenty-five percent of their time performing transient rental
inspections. Commissioner Geerge said that she was just talking about the togic of using the
mechanism to fund a position or not, and if you are, then you would also have to factor in the
existing base. Building Official Law said that is why Page 13 in the agenda book shows the
total inspections and the difference in revenue. Commissioner George is disputing that you
would need to look at the difference and instead look at the whoele thing to figure out how
much money you have for the program. Building Official Law advised to just add the two
numbers together. Commissioner George said yes. Building Official Law said that you can look
at any way you want, but it was easier to break it up that way.

City Clerk Fitzgerald advised the Commission to remember that there are two separate issues;
one is whether to hire a new Officer and two is whether to increase the inspection fee.

Motion: To hire a second Code Enforcement Officer and change the fee structure to increase
the transient rental inspection fee to 5450 per unit. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded
by Commissioner Sweeny.

Mayor Samora asked for a roll call vote.

Vice Mayor Rumrell Yes
Commissioner England Yes
Commissioner Sweeny Yes
Mayor Samora Yes
Commissioner George No

Motion passes 4-1

Building Official Law advised that he would bring a resolution back in December for the fee
schedule and he would begin the process of internal hiring, if there are no applicants then he
would go external. He advised that he would not start a new position until after the holidays.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XI1.9 and asked Planner Jennifer Thompson for her report.

Ordinance 22-13, First Reading, to Vacate Alley between 1% and 2™ Streets, West of 2™
Avenue, Block 32, Chautauqua Beach Subdivision {Presenter: Jennifer Thompson, Planner)

Planner Thompson advised that the Commission saw this back in September to vacate the
alley between 1 and 2™ Streets, west of 2™ Avenue. She said that seventy percent or more
of the residents on the street gave their consent in writing to have the alley vacated.

20



10.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment, Being none, he closed Public Comment and asked
the City Attorney to read the preamble. City Attorney Douglas read the preamble,

Motion: To approve Ordinance 22-13, Moved by Commissioner George, Seconded by Vice
Mayor Rumrell. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item X11.10 and asked City Manager Royle for his report.

Memento of City: Review of City Coin {Presenter: Max Royle, City Manager)

City Manager Royle asked what the purpose of the memento would be. He said that if is to
pass out to a bunch of people, such as at a Florida League of Cities dinner, that he did not
think the Commission would want coins that would cost $5 or more each because it could add
up quickly. He said that lapel pins are very cheap, but to have a more attractive memento,
you would choose one type for special guests, special events, etc. like we used to do with the
City keys.

Mayor Samora said that he believed that the original intent was to fall somewhere in between
and not a key to the City or a pin that we would give to everyone that we meet. He said that
it should be something that would be honorary. City Manager Royle said that the Commission
would need to decide if you want the coin type or the key type.

It was the consensus of the Commission to go with a coin type memento.

City Manager Royle advised that he would get something mid-priced and that ordering a
greater quantity would make the price go down. He said that he would bring it back to show
the Commission before placing the order.

Mayeor Samora asked the City Clerk if she needed any further direction. City Clerk Fitzgerald
advised no. She said based on the instruction given by the Commission in prior meetings that
she pulled the quotes, which are included in the book. She said that this is an unbudgeted
item for this fiscal year, so we will need to find the money somewhere for them. She
suggested to develop a resolution to specify how and when these can be given out, which
would be helpful to contrel the usage of them.

Commissioner England suggested that they be given out at the recommendation of the City
Manager or a Commissioner, Commissioner Sweeny suggested that each Commissioner be
given a set amount. Mayor Samora and Vice Mayor Rumrell agreed with Commissioner
Sweeny’s suggestion.

Commissioner George said that she was under the impression that we are allowed to bringin
any garments and ask to have the City seal embroidered on it. Mayor Samora said that it came
up because of the recent storms and he wanted to have an identifiable City shirt on while out
in the neighborhoods. City Manager Royle advised that he has seen hats with the City of St.
Augustine Beach stitched on them. Commissioner George advised that she would want it to
be the official City seal. Mayor Samora said it should be official for instance when we go to
the Emergency Management Center. City Manager Royle advised that he would look into it.

Commissioner George said in the past the City Clerk would take my garment and have it
embroidered. City Manager Royle advised that he did not recall that, but that the City orders
shirts for the Commissioners that have the City seal on them. Commissioner George said that
she would always bring her garment in because you do not know what the quality of the shirts
are from the catalog, plus it would be cheaper to bring in your own. City Clerk Fitzgerald
advised that she did not know if the City’s embroidery company would allow that because
currently we have to order all the clothing items through them. Commissioner George asked
the City Clerk if she would find out. City Clerk Fitzgerald said that it is through a local company

21



called American Crossroads Apparel. Commissioner George asked how you would be able to
try them on. City Clerk Fitzgerald said that you would not be able to and for the most part we
order the same things over and over again. Commissioner George said that if we have to go
through that company, then to get some hats.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment.

Jim LeClare, 115 Whispering Oaks Circle, St. Augustine Beach, FL, said that the Blue Angels
have a “Challenge Coin”, which is engraved and is three dimensional but costs about $200
each.

Mayor Samora close Public Comments. City Manager Royle advised that anyone wanting a
shirt should just let him know the size and color.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem XI1.11.

11. Resolution 22-13, to Amend the City Commission's Policies and Procedures Manual Regarding
When City Commission Meetings are to End (Presenter: Max Royle, City Manager)

Mayor Samora advised that there was one simple change that was made to the resolution
and that the Commission would vote to extend meetings as needed.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comments. Being none, he closed Public Comments.

Motion: To approve Resolution 22-13. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by
Commissioner Gearge. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XIl1.12 and asked the City Manager for his report.

X, NEW BUSINESS

12. 4" Street between 2" Avenue and A1A Beach Boulevard: Consideration of Assessment to Pay
for Paving and the Undergrounding of Pawer Lines (Presenter: Max Royle, City Manager)

City Manager Royle advised that this the section of 4" Street just north of Tides Oyster
Company. Some of it has old pavement and the lot owners farther to the west on the north
side want to improve their property. He said that the property on the south side down to 2"
Avenue is owned by the same owner as the Tides Qyster Company and that he does not know
if they agree or not. He advised that the purpose of this is to open the street for the lot owners
on the north side to gain access to their properties and develop them. Opening the street
would make the lots on the south side very valuable. He said that everyone that has a lot that
borders it should share in the cost to open it. He said that we have done it on A Street, 8t
Street, 2™ Street, etc. and that he would like the Commission to consider an assessment
mechanism to pay for the cost to pave and underground the utilities.

Mayor Samora said that there are four different actions that we are being asked to consider
tonight: 1) a revenue mechanism to cover the cost of paving; 2) whether or not it would
include the undergrounding of the utilities; 3) the project cost; 4) whether or not 4™ Street
would connect through to 2" Avenue. He advised that in his opinion we already have a mode!
for this from the 2™ Street project in regard to the fee structure and the costs and that he
does not think that we should deviate fram that. The rest of the Commissioners agreed.
Mayor Samora said that we have set a fairly strong precedence on undergrounding the
utilities as part of it.

Mayor Samora advised that there were some pecple that said they wanted it to end in 3 cul-
de-sac and that the information shows some differences in the rights-of-ways between 8t
and 4% Streets. City Manager Royle advised that 4% Street is forty feet wide and 8" Street is

22



sixty feet wide. Commissioner George pointed out that there has been no input from the
owner of Tides Oyster Company and that before a decision is made, she would like to hear
from the property owner. She said that it is a different situation where the cul-de-sac is on
the west side as opposed to blocking off access to the Boulevard for the property owner on
the east side. She said that there was a City owned plaza on the west side on 8" Street and
that she would like to get official feedback from the property owner. Mayor Samora agreed
that the City needs more feedback on that partion of it but that we do not need to sort that
out tonight.

Vice Mayor Rumrell asked if anyone has reached out to Tides Oyster Company. City Manager
Royle advised no because they have been concentrating strictly on how to fund the opening
the street. He said that he believed that the owner now lives in New Jersey, and he would see
if there is a way to contact them. Commissioner George said that they may not care, but that
it is inappropriate not to reach out to them. The Mayor agreed.

City Manager Royle confirmed that the question to the Tides Oyster Company owner would
be to either open it through to 2™ Avenue or to a cul-de-sac. Commissioner George said yes
and whether they care about having access to the road or having the road opened across to
the area that they are already using. She said that they probably would not want that and to
explain the whole situation to them by phone or send them a letter. City Manager Royle said
that if we are opening it up and requiring the people on the north side to pay, whether the
owner of the Tides Oyster Company wants the street opened or not is not pertinent because
he is going to benefit tremendously after these people pay to open it and it would make the
value of those lots ge up.

Commissioner Sweeny asked if we were asking that owner about opening the road or whether
to be a cul-de-sac or go through. City Manager Royle said that is his same guestion.
Commissioner Sweeny said that she thought we were just asking him about the cul-de-sac.

Commissioner George asked if we have ever required a ratio of how many property owners
wanted it before we did it. City Manager Royle advised no. Mayor Samora advised that he did
not believe that we have anything codified requiring us to do that. He said that the Tides
Oyster Company also owns the whole south side of the street. Commissioner George said that
he may be represented by Mr. Whitehouse. She advised that he gestured “no”.

James Whitehouse, St. Johns Law Group, 104 SeaGrove Main Street, $t. Augustine Beach, FL,
advised that he is here on behalf of the two north middle lots, HVG Properties. He said that
he also used to own the ones in the front but now Ginn and Patrou Holdings is moving forward
with their commercial development. He said that he thinks the City has decided to use that
part, but it would be much better if it were a road for them too. He said that others are also
trying to move forward with their property improvements, but they can’t because there is no
road. He said for vacating an alley that a percentage of agreement is needed. He said that his
client’s position is that he would like to move forward in the same fashion that was done for
2" Street. He advised that he did not know what their position is on the south side, but it is
an unopened right-of-way that could be opened like 2" Street. He said that his clients do not
mind if it is a cul-de-sac, but it is a small turn-around for emergency vehicles and sanitation.
He said that it is also his understanding from the Police Department that through streets are
much better. He advised that that does not need to be decided tonight and just a motion
going forward would be great for his clients.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment. Being none, He closed Public Comments. He said
that we need to start the process of notifying the property owners with the intent of opening
the street and structure it the same as 2™ Street. Commissioner George said that everyone

23



XV,

XV,

benefitting should contribute. Commissioner England suggested that we be consistent and go
straight through rather than a cul-de-sac for safety, etc.

City Manager Royle advised that he has the direction that he needs.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XIV.

STAFF COMMENTS

Chief Carswell advised that there is a “Cops and Claus” event coming up in December, which he
would discuss at the December meeting.

Public Works Director Tredik advised that they are still cleaning up from the storm and trying to
get Splash Park back open this week. Mayor Samora asked if the A Street sidewalk was still
planned for after Thanksgiving. Director Tredik advised that it is still on schedule and that they
would be putting out doorhangers this week unless he finds out that it has been postponed.
Mayor Samora asked if the Army Corps of Engineers has been back to assess the beach. Director
Tredik advised that the Army Corps and the County are going out Tuesday.

Commissioner England asked the City Manager for an update on the Vision Plan. City Manager
Royle advised that the City Clerk provided notes from the Vision Plan Workshop, SEPAC Member
Craig Thomsan provided some additional material, and Chief Carswell provided his comments. He
said that the parkettes to plazas changes have been done and that there is a copy in her mailbox.
He advised that SEPAC would be reviewing it at their meeting, and he would see what comes from
that, but that it may be too short of a time frame to get it to the Commission for the December
meeting. He said that Commissioner England is always welcome to come see us after she leaves
the Commission, ar she could join SEPAC.

Mayor Samora advised that SEPAC meets here Thursday, November 17" and the Thanksgiving
holiday is November 24'" and 25", that City officers would be closed both days and that the trash
schedule would be adjusted accordingly. He reminded everyone that the Beach Art Walk is
November 26™ from 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem XV,

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Samora asked for a motion to adjourn.

Motion: to adjourn. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by Commissioner George. Motion
passed unanimously.

Mayaor Samara adjourned the meeting at 9:32 p.m.

Donald Samora, Mayor

ATTEST:
>

S i
Dariana Fifégerald, City Clerk

24








https://disarterl9anassi5tance,sba.e.0v
https://disasterassistance.gov
https://equlpm.nt










11

12

Other SBA Loans

SBA’s Economic injury Disaster Loan (EIDLs) funds come directly
from the U.S. Treasury.

Applicants do not go through a bank to 2nnly Inctaad annhs directly
to SBA’s Disaster Assistance Program at

There is no cost to apply.

Applicants can have an existing SBA Disaster Loan and still qualify
for a loan for this disaster, but the loans cannot be consolidated.



https://www.sba.gov/local

13

14

e g = = ey

To be considered far all farme nf disaster assistance, applicants should register
online a r download the FEMA mobile app. If online or
mobile access i1s unavanaoe, appiicants should call the FEMA toll-free helpline
at 800-621-3362. Those who use 711-Relay or Video Relay Services should call
B0O0-621-3362,

Applicants may apply online using the Flectrnnic | nan Annlicatinn (F1 A} via
SBA’s secure website & and
should apply under SBA Geciviuvv o os wrme

Visit the nearest FEMA Disaster Recovery Center or SBA Business Recovery
Center.

Disaster loan information and application forms can aisc be obtained by calling
the SBA’s Customer Service Center at 800-659-2955 (if you are deaf, hard of
hearing, or have a speech disability, please dial 7-1-1 to access

trlnrmmnmaimiea b s valavy A ] o e T o i +m



https://sba.gov/disaster
mailto:DisasterCustomerService@sba.gov
https://disasterloanassistance.sba.gov/ela/s
https://DisasterAssistance.gov

15



mailto:disastercustomerservice@sba.gov
www.sba.gov







64V ucean
Paim Way

6 "0 Ocean Palm Way




To: The City of St. Augustine Beach commission,

This dacument ouilines a charitable danation to the City of St. Augustine Beach for the development
of Ccean Hammock Park by the families of Lis2 and Matt Bond, Dave and Marcia Campbell and
Dave and Kathy White all residents of St. Augustine Beach in the amount of up to $600,000 for the

following:

1) A new watkway down the caenter {narth to south) of the park running west to east toward the
ocean front with a direct exit to the beach in the same center (north to south) flow.

2} Removal of the current aging walkway (after the hew walkway is insialled) to the south of the
property that runs west to east and returning this area to its natural state;

3) The establishment of a permanent buffer to the north and south of 80'each to provide natural
space for wildlife between the adjoining subdivisions;

4) A pavilion with picnic t2bles directly off the center walkway;

5) A play area for children directly off the center walloway,

The aftached map provides for the approximate placement of each of the itemns listed above,

Should any of the above listed items 1-3 be revised or changed.without the consent of the. donors
listed above the full donation above must be retumed.

Additional funding has been repceived for the development of other amenities including a bathroom
area adjoining the walkway in the center {north to south} by the parking area.

This is a win-win for evaryone, and we believe a great opportunity to show how the city worked with
* the community to deliver a beautiful park in a natural setting that will be a great resource for

residents and visitors for years to come. It has been an honor to work with the Counsel and
members of the city to bring this park from an idea to a reality.

Sincerely,
Matt and Lisa Bond

David and Marcia Campbell

Dave and Kathy White



EXHIBIT &

Fronm:

To:

mm: nowany weoar HarfiMTGER Pard donagtion Jetler
Pate: Moeray Arwiosk bs R T OIS B
Attedhments:

CALTION: This messape odiginated fom outside of your organization, Clicking vn any link or opening any
ultachment may be harmtil to your computer or the Ciy, I yoe do not tecognize the seader or expect the email,
please verity the email address and any atiachments before opetting. [f yoo Have eny questions or conceras aboct the
content, please contuct 1T stalf st 1idiciiyolsab.org.

itk -

Thavk you tor your continusd work and difigence on Ocean Hummack Park. You have made great prpgress on the,
new pathway, pavilion, playground, restronm location, establishing a bufler to the south matching the sorth ang
removal of the otd walkway after the current walkway is complete. Wow! That i3 8 big cffort. Welt done sir?

Ihe tocal citizens of Sea Colony wani to suppart youre plam and will contribute up fo $600.000 [or the
imptementation. Please ses the altachod letter conlinming the donatron.

Please fecl free b reachy owt witkt any questions.

Here is my maobile:
363-381-%¢176

Sincerely

Crezpg Hamemiann
Sen Calony FICA President


https://r,r,og1't'.ss
https://JT(fi1ci1yofaab.org




Frewm: Gregg Hammann

Bhate: October 20, 2022 at 11:57:03 AN EDT

It was great to mest you this morning. | look forward to warking with you for the belterment of our
comrnunities. Together with Marsh Creek | think there are a multitude of ways we can help each other.
Regarding the letter of nppaesition for the new walkway. Let me provide a few hullets of fact versus the
fiction created by just a few select individuals who have continued {o propagandize information with non-
facts. 30 here are a few bullets on the fact vs. fiction from the letter:

1) Regarding Sea Colony net baving support of the community: Sea Colony did a survey of afl
residents. It was an everwhelining response of suppeort for the new walkway and removing the old
wallkway/decommissioning it (which ever is least expensive and least intrusive to the wetlands). Over
80% were in support, 1.5% opposed (a resident that always opposes everything} an the rest did not
respond at all. Not unusual as we have several homes that have owners with two locations. We have
collected $600K to support the move and improvements.

2) Regarding minimizing ecological impact: St. Johns Water River Management reported to the
counsel that the current walkway along with upcoming maintanence requirements {which fax
payers WILL pay for} is far more introsive over the limited remaining weilands on the isiand than
moving the walkway to a more land-based approach to the north. SJIWRM is in suppoit of returning the
wetlands to their natural state.

3) Regarding significant government monies that have been spent “that will be wasted”: Bill
Tredick the person responsible for the park and city systems is a governmant employee paid a
salary. There are NO additional funds that will be wasted, All that is completed to date is a letter io
various slate and federai organizations for grant money and an initial drawing that was prepared by a an
architect. & simple change was made to move the walkway from the south border to the same enfrances
from Old A1A Beach Bivd angling to the north to get onfo drier fand minimizing impaci to the environrment,
improving that ability io maintain AND improving both Emergsancy Response services and Police support
to the walkway. The current walkway is difficut for the police to manage as they can not easily get access
ic lock the gates in the evening. Further when injuries occur on the beach or park it will be easier access
for EMR services.

4) The “original plan” was designed whan the city did not own the entive property. in addition i
they are referring to a redesign that used the existing wallway it would require additisnal
wallkways to be built again over marsh land heading to the north to get (o the dry tand. This is a
much greater disturbance to wild life than a simple walkway on a drier area in the center of the park.
Check google maps and you will see wailands to the south and dry land to the north.

5) Regarding the city and its foocus on the betterment of the community. The city commissioners
and staff have agreed that if they had owned the whole parcal of land to start they would build the
walkway down the center. The ONLY reason it is in its current location is because the city was "given” a
stiver of land deemed unbuildable by the owner (over wetlands). Now that the city owns tha entire
property they have an opportunity to do it right and were in a position a month ago to move forward until
nore false propoganda were made by a few people.

6) Regarding no incidents in Sea Colony: Again not true, thers was a police report filed where
someone through a taped open red spray paint can into a Sea Colony back pool area. Damaging
their tile, paol and pillars. This process was then repeated. Police were af the scene and a report filed.
There have also been multiple issues with people late at night on the walkway. Multiple residents in Sea
Cotony along the walkway are now afraid to walk in that area of our neighborhood at night. One spoke 1o
this issue af the tast meeting. Evidence helow:

Other falsehoods that have been stated and debunked by the somwission and cily manaders:


mailto:R~@!.nxt:101119

1) More disruptive to the environment. Fact new proposal with center walkway is less disruptive {o
the environmant

2) More cosi to the city. Fact less cost to the city with the donation provided by Sea Colony residenis.
The additional walkways to be built off of the old walkway the ongoing maintanence of an aging walkway
(estimated to be from $40,000 o $80,000 per year to maintain over the marsh area (the walkway is now
over fifteen years old and pillars are starting to rot along with the railing. See the attachment below from
Mr. Tredick to the council. As you will see the ONLY change we have requested is the decommissioning
of the current walkway and reduction of expense of having to have additional walkway built to get to the
center area where the amenities are. The rest is the cities plan.

3) Why does Sea Colony deserve a buffer?? Facl: Bermuda Run was provided a 50’ buffer to the
park on their boundary. Whispering Ozks has requested a buffer frem the land and irail that the city
owns and plans to build a path from A14 to the entrance of the park that abuts their subdivision.
Yet they cppose it for Sea Colony.

4) More maintanence: On this thoy are right. With bathrooms/showers, 2 pavilion, a children's play
area, an overlook to the beach there will certainly ba move maintanence. Whether the walkway is
the same or a new one installed. The only difference is the new walkway wili cost less to maintain,
iz better for the environment and improves ingress egress for EMR and Police.

5) Sea Colony homas will appreciate and the mayor and one other counsel member who live in
Sea Coleny will benefit. Fact: A prominent real estate lsader did an overview of property values
with the new park. There are four homes (of the 222) in Sea Colony that would benefit because
they are literally right on the waliiway {(BTW- some were built before the walkway was installed).
Mene of those homes belong to counsel members. Sea Coleny has four access walkways to the
beach today so ne real value in a walkway or park. Interestingly, and the Whispering QOals pzople
apparently have not figured this out the homes that most appreciale are the homes ocutside of Sea
Colony (Whispering Oaks, Marsh Creek, Hotels along Beach Blvd, ete. )

6) Dow't let Sea Colony have it’s way again: Fact Sea Colony has never had its way on anyihing.
We did nhot ask to have a walkway built next to us - - the city just did it and frankly had | have been in their
shoes for the betterment of the comimunity | would have done the same. But now it is different. We have
an aging walkway that will require significant maintanence, more walkways to be buili over wetlands io
get to the amenities and most important the city now owns all the land not just a narrow strip. The city has
agreed if they could do it the right way they would build it down the center.

| could go on with other propaganda they have proposed and wete rejected with facts. But | think this geta
the point across.

Thie fact is, there is NO reason to keep the old walkway. The new walkway with well laid out amenities
will be better for ihe community and yes for Sea Colony secondarily for a few homes. Sea Colony
residents have provided their own funds {not tax dollars) to help fund getting it right. | would ask the
developers of the propaganda what they are willing 1o contribute. The answer: Lots of propaganda.





























https://i\J=7GD/6.19



















